
Summary 

The name of the city of Oxford is virtually synon­
ymous throughout the world with that of Oxford 
University. At the time of its emergence in the 
historical record, however, the university had taken 
root in what was already a thriving medieval town. 
The broad, shallow floodplain of the river Thames 
had encouraged the development of a major river 
crossing at Oxford, probably from as early as the 7th 
century AD, and this crossing provided both a focus 
for a permanent settlement, and the name of Oxford 
by which the settlement came to be known. The 
strategic importance of the site is reflected in the 
probable establishment of St Frideswide's Minster by 
the end of the 7th century, and the subsequent 
development of Oxford as a burh, or centre of 
defence against the Vikings, by 911-12. The late 
Saxon burh was provided with a defensive rampart 
and ditch, and the interior was divided up into a grid 
of metalled streets. By the early 11th century Oxford 
had become a prosperous urban centre, with 
intensively developed street frontages, numerous 
churches, and a mint. Following the Norman 
Conquest of 1066, a motte and bailey castle was 
constructed over the western part of the Saxon town. 
There seems to have been a significant short-lived 
decline in Oxford's fortunes after the Conquest, but 
recovery was underway by the end of the 11th 
century when a major stone causeway, the Grand-
pont, was built across the floodplain. Numerous 
churches and monastic houses were founded at 
Oxford during the 12th century, and Henry I built a 

Der Name der Stadt Oxford wird praktisch in der 
gesamten Welt mit der Universitat von Oxford 
gleichgesetzt. Allerdings war Oxford bereits eine 
bliihende mittelalterliche Stadt, als die Universitat 
erstmals urkundlich erwahnt wurde. Die breiten, 
flachen Themseauen hatten wahrscheinlich schon im 
7. Jahrhundert n. Chr. die Einrichtung einer bedeut-
samen Furt begiinstigt, die sowohl den Grundstein 
fur eine dauerhafte Siedlung legte als auch den 
Namen Oxford (Ochsenfurt) begriindete, unter dem 
der Ort bekannt wurde. Die strategische Bedeutung 
des Ortes zeigt sich auch daran, dass die Heilige 
Frideswide word noch vor Ende des 7. Jahrhunderts 
hier eine Klosterkirche griindete und Oxford sich bis 
911/12 zu einem burh, einem Zentrum der Verteidi-
gung gegen die Wikinger, entwickelte. Der aus der 

palace outside the northern walls. Subsequently the 
town was a major strategic centre during the 
Anarchy of 1135-54. By the end of the 12th century, 
when the existence of a fledgling university is first 
apparent, Oxford was prospering once again. There 
was rapid expansion into northern, southern, eastern 
and western suburbs, and the citizens acquired a 
municipal seal (the oldest known in Britain) by 1191. 
The seal depicts a walled city with the figure of an ox 
superimposed on it, expressing as succinctly as any 
modern advertising logo both the city's origins and 
its corporate pride in its success. 

This volume presents a comprehensive account of 
archaeological research into the origins and devel­
opment of Oxford during this period. It includes 
reports on some 18 previously unpublished archae­
ological sites, accompanied by chapters on their 
finds, animal bone and environmental assemblages. 
These are treated thematically, and cover the Thames 
Crossing, the defences, and the developing town 
with its streets, properties, houses and churches. The 
detailed site reports are preceded by a synthesis and 
discussion of the evidence, which traces the devel­
opment of theories about the Anglo-Saxon town and 
reviews the many problems and uncertainties that 
still exist. This discussion is supported by a gazetteer 
of relevant archaeological observations in the historic 
core of the city. The reports on the Thames Crossing 
sites are preceded by a detailed review of the 
development of the river Thames and its floodplain 
at Oxford. 

Spatzeit der Angelsachsen stammende burh war 
nach aufien durch einen Befestigungswall und 
Graben gesichert und im Innern von einem Netz 
an Schotterwegen durchzogen. Zu Beginn des 11. 
Jahrhundert war aus Oxford ein wohlhabendes 
urbanes Zentrum mit gut entwickelten 
StraSenfronten, zahlreichen Kirchen und einer ei-
genen Munzanstalt geworden. Nach der Eroberung 
durch die Normannen im Jahr 1066 wurde iiber dem 
Westteil der angelsachsischen Stadt eine Motte 
errichtet. Offenbar erlitt der Ort im Anschluss an 
die normannische Eroberung einen deutlichen, wenn 
auch nur kurzzeitigen Niedergang, von der er sich 
noch vor Ablauf des 11. Jahrhunderts wieder erholte, 
als ein grofier Steindamm, der "Grandpont", uber die 
Flussauen hinweg gebaut wurde. Wahrend des 12. 
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Jahrhunderts entstanden zahlreiche Kirchen und 
monastische Gebaude in Oxford, dazu lieS Heinrich 
I. aufierhalb der Nordmauern einen Palast errichten. 
Wahrend der Zeit der Anarchic (1135-54) war die 
Stadt ein wichtiges strategisches Zentrum, und noch 
vor Ablauf des 12. Jahrhunderts, als erstmals von der 
Existenz einer aufstrebenden Universitat zu horen 
ist, war Oxford zu seiner vormaligen Bliite zuriick-
gekehrt. Die Stadt dehnte sich schnell in alle 
Himrnelsrichtungen aus und erhielt 1191 ein Stadt-
siegel (das alteste fur GroSbritartnien belegte). Das 
Siegel zeigt eine urnmauerte Stadt und einen Ochsen, 
was genauso pragnant wie jedes moderne Werbelo-
go sowohl die Ursprirnge der Stadt als auch ihren 
Stolz auf ihre Errungenschaften verdeutlicht. 

Der vorliegende Band stellt die archaologischen 
Untersuchungen iiber die Urspriinge und die En-
twicklung Oxfords in dieser Zeit ausfuhrlich dar. Er 

Le nom de la cite d'Oxford est, de par le monde, 
quasiment synonyme de celui de l'Universite d'Ox­
ford. Toutefois, au moment de son apparition dans 
les sources historiques, l'Universite a pris racine dans 
ce qui constituait deja une ville medievale florissante. 
La large et peu profonde plaine inondable de la 
Tamise encouragea le developpement d'un lieu de 
passage important du fleuve a Oxford, probable-
ment des le debut du Vlleme siecle apres JC. Ce 
passage fournit a la fois un centre pour un site 
d'habitation permanent et le nom d' "Oxford" sous 
lequel ce foyer vint a se faire connaitre. L'importance 
strategique du site se reflete a travers la fondation 
vraisemblable de l'eglise abbatiale de St Frideswide, 
vers la fin du Vlleme siecle, et le developpement 
consecurif d'Oxford en tant que "burh", ou centre de 
defence contre les Vikings, a partir de 911-912. Le 
"burh" de la fin de l'epoque saxonne comprenanit 
un rempart defensif accompagne d'un fosse et son 
enclos etait divise par un reseau de rues empierrees. 
Des le debut du Xleme siecle Oxford etait devenu un 
centre urbain prospere, aux facades de rues intense-
ment developpees, de nombreuses eglises ainsi 
qu'un atelier monetaire. A la suite de la Conquete 
Normande de 1066, une motte et un chateau avec 
cour interieure furent construits sur la partie ouest 
de la ville saxonne. II semble que le sort d'Oxford ait 
connu un declin significatif de courte duree apres la 
Conquete, mais le redressement etait en cours des la 
fin du Xleme siecle, au moment de la construction 
d'une large chaussee de pierres, le "Grandpont", a 
travers le lit majeur du fleuve. De nombreuses 
eglises et batiments monastiques furent fondes a 
Oxford au cours du Xlleme siecle et Henri I 
construisit un palais a l'exterieur des murs Nord. 

enthalt Berichte zu 18 bisher unveroffentlichten 
archaologischen Statten mit Kapiteln zu den jeweili-
gen Funden, Tierknochen sowie dem okologischen 
Milieu. Die nach Themen geordneten Berichte 
behandeln das Gebiet an der Themsefurt, die 
Verteidigungsanlagen und die Strafien, Grund-
stiicke, Hauser und Kirchen der sich entwickelnden 
Stadt. Vor den Detailberichten zu den Fundorten 
steht eine Ubersicht und Erorterung der Belege, die 
die Entwicklung der Theorien iiber die angelsach-
sische Stadt aufrollt und viele der auch weiterhin 
bestehenden Schwierigkeiten und Unsicherheiten 
diskutiert. Diese Erorterung ist durch ein Verzeichnis 
der relevanten archaologischen Beobachtungen im 
historischen Kern der Stadt erganzt. Den Berichten 
iiber die Fundstatten an der Themsefurt ist eine 
Betrachtung zur Entwicklung der Themse und ihrer 
Flussauen bei Oxford vorangestellt. 

Par la suite, la ville constitua un centre strategique de 
premiere importance au cours de l'Anarchie de 
1135-54. Des la fin du XUeme siecle, au moment 
ou l'existence d'une jeune Universite est pour la 
premiere fois perceptible, Oxford etait une fois de 
plus florissante. Les banlieues nord, sud, est et ouest 
connurent une rapide expansion et les citoyens 
acquirent, des 1191, un sceau municipal, le plus 
ancien connu en Grande Bretagne. Le sceau repre-
sente une cite emmuree avec la silhouette d'un boeuf 
en surimpression, exprimant, aussi succintement que 
n'importe quel logo publicitaire moderne, a la fois les 
origines de la cite et sa fierte collective suscitee par 
son succes. 

Cet ouvrage presente un compte-rendu detaille 
des recherches archeologiques relatives aux origines 
et developpement d'Oxford au cours de cette 
periode. II inclut des exposes concernant 18 sites 
archeologiques, non publies auparavant, accom-
pagnes de chapitres relatifs au mobilier, ossements 
animaux et assemblages environnementaux. Ceux-ci 
sont traites de maniere thematique et comprennent le 
passage de la Tamise, les defences et la ville en voie 
de developpement avec ses rues, ses proprietes, ses 
maisons et ses eglises. Les compte-rendus detailles 
de sites sont precedes par une synthese et discussion 
des preuves qui retracent le developpement des 
theories relatives a la ville anglo-saxonne et examine 
les nombreuses questions et incertitudes encore en 
suspens. Cette discussion est appuyee par un 
repertoire geographique d'observations archeologi­
ques pertinentes, au coeur du foyer historiques de la 
cite. Les exposes des lieux de passage de la Tamise 
sont precedes par un examen attentif du developpe­
ment du fleuve et de sa plaine inondable a Oxford. 
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Location of the project archives 

The archive for excavations carried out on the line of 
the City Wall at New College (1993) is deposited 

with the Ashmolean Museum, Oxford. The archives 
of the remaining excavations discussed in this 
monograph will be deposited with the Oxfordshire 
County Museums Service at Standlake, Oxfordshire. 
A copy of these archives will also be deposited with 
the National Monuments Record Centre, Swindon. 
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